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DECISION 


The insurance producer license of Todd M. McGrath (“McGrath”) is subject to discipline because McGrath pled guilty to a crime that is a felony and involves moral turpitude, and he failed to notify the Director of Insurance (“the Director”) of the prosecution when it was pending.  

Procedure


The Director filed a complaint on May 17, 2004.  A copy of the complaint and notice of hearing was served on McGrath by personal service on May 25, 2004, at a federal prison in South Dakota, but McGrath did not file an answer to the complaint.  


This Commission convened a hearing on the complaint on October 21, 2004.  Though notified of the time and date of the hearing, neither McGrath nor anyone representing him appeared.
  Kevin Hall represented the Director.  


The matter became ready for our decision on January 25, 2005, the last date for filing a written argument.  

Findings of Fact

1. The Director has licensed McGrath as an insurance producer.  The license was current and active at all relevant times, and it expires on August 8, 2005.   

2. McGrath sold an annuity to an elderly client and asked if he could borrow money from her through that annuity.  After accepting the loan from her, he took out a home equity loan and made false representations on the loan application.  

3. On January 8, 2004, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, McGrath pled guilty to making a false statement on a loan application.  The court sentenced him to 24 months in prison.  

4. McGrath never notified the Director of the criminal proceeding or the conviction.  The Director’s investigator found out about the proceeding from an FBI agent.  

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint.  Section 621.045, RSMo 2000.
   The Director has the burden of proving that McGrath committed conduct for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm'n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  


Section 375.141.1 provides:  


The director may suspend, revoke, refuse to issue or refuse to renew an insurance producer license for any one or more of the following causes:  

*   *   *


(2) Violating any insurance laws, or violating any regulation, subpoena or order of the director or of another insurance commissioner in any other state; 

*   *   *


(6) Having been convicted of a felony or crime involving moral turpitude[.]

I.  Conviction of Felony or Crime 

Involving Moral Turpitude

18 U.S.C. § 1014 criminalizes the making of a false statement on a loan application:  

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or report, or willfully overvalues any land, property or security, for the purpose of influencing in any way the action of the Farm Credit Administration, Federal Crop Insurance Corporation or a company the Corporation reinsures, the Secretary of Agriculture acting through the Farmers Home Administration or successor agency, the Rural Development Administration or successor agency, any Farm Credit Bank, production credit association, agricultural credit association, bank for cooperatives, or any division, officer, or employee thereof, or of any regional agricultural credit corporation established pursuant to law, or a Federal land bank, a Federal land bank association, a Federal Reserve bank, a small business investment company, as defined in section 103 of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 (15 U.S.C. 662), or the Small Business Administration in connection with any provision of that Act, a Federal credit union, an insured State-chartered credit union, any institution the accounts of which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Office of Thrift Supervision, any Federal home loan bank, the Federal Housing Finance Board, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Resolution Trust Corporation, the Farm Credit System Insurance Corporation, or the National Credit Union Administration Board, a branch or agency of a foreign bank (as such terms are defined in paragraphs (1) and (3) of section 1(b) of the International Banking Act of 1978 [12 USCS § 3101(1) and (3)]), or an organization operating under section 25 or section 25(a) of the Federal Reserve Act, upon any application, advance, discount, purchase, purchase agreement, repurchase agreement, commitment, or loan, or any change or extension of any of the same, by renewal, deferment of action or otherwise, or the acceptance, release, or substitution of security therefor, shall be fined not more than $ 1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years or both.  The term “State-chartered credit 

union” includes a credit union chartered under the laws of a State of the United States, the District of Columbia, or any commonwealth, territory, or possession of the United States.

This crime is a Class B felony.  18 U.S.C. § 3559(a)(2).  A conviction occurs when the court makes its judgment final, which occurs when the court imposes a sentence such as imprisonment or a fine.  See Yale v. City of Independence, 846 S.W.2d 193, 194 (Mo. banc 1993).  McGrath was sentenced on his guilty plea to making a false statement on a loan application.  Therefore, McGrath was convicted of a felony.  


Moral turpitude is:  

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  We agree with the Director that making a false statement on a loan application is a crime involving moral turpitude.  Because McGrath was convicted of a felony and a crime involving moral turpitude, there is cause to discipline his license under § 375.141.1(6).  

II.  Failure to Notify the Director 

of Criminal Prosecution


The Director cites § 375.141.7, which provides:  

Within thirty days of the initial pretrial hearing date, a producer shall report to the director any criminal prosecution for a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude of the producer taken in any jurisdiction.  The report shall include a copy of the indictment or information filed, the order resulting from the hearing and any other relevant legal documents.  

McGrath never notified the Director that the criminal prosecution was pending, even after the conviction.  Therefore, McGrath violated § 375.141.7, and there is cause to discipline his license under § 375.141.1(2).  

Summary


There is cause to discipline McGrath’s insurance producer license because McGrath pled guilty to a crime that is a felony and involves moral turpitude, and he failed to notify the Director of the prosecution when it was pending.  


SO ORDERED on March 3, 2005.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP  



Commissioner

	�It appears that McGrath was still incarcerated as of that date.  


	�Statutory references are to the 2003 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.  
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